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TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(U.S. dollars in millions, except per share data)

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2009 2008 2009 2008
INEE SAIES ...ttt bbbttt et $ 3400 $ 2823 $ 6547 $ 5395
COSE OF SAIES ...ttt 1,631 1,318 3,207 2,518
LC] 0TIy o] 0] 11 AP 1,769 1,505 3,340 2,877
Research and development EXPENSES ........cveiviieiierieiie st sie e se e e e e sre e 169 198 388 377
Selling and MArketing EXPENSES ........cveviieieereree e siesee et e see e ee et sre et seeseeseenees 649 500 1,253 852
General and adminiStrative EXPENSES ........cviiriiirirererie ettt 197 169 393 331
Acquisition of research and development iN PrOCESS ......cccvvieereiiieiieiieseeriesee e siesieans — — — 382
Litigation settlements, impairment and restructuring eXPenses .........ccecvevvvvrerervereeeenes 52 — 66 —
(@] oL LT aTo T ool ] o T PP 702 638 1,240 935
FINANCIAl EXPENSES — NEL .. vveviiiie ettt beeaesreesbesre e 61 34* 124 100*
INCOME DETOrE INCOME TAXES ....oviiiriiii ettt 641 604 1,116 835
Provision fOr iNCOME TAXES.........cvreirieirieisieist et 98 68* 123 160*
543 536 993 675

Share in losses of associated COMPANIES — NEL ........coviviiieiieiierece e 20 1 19 *x
INET INCOMIE ..ttt ettt b e ae bt b e bt bt e bt bt b e sbesbesbenbenbe s 523 535 974 675
Attributable to NoN-controlling INTErESES .......cvevveveieeieeec e 2 2 2 3
Net income attributable t0 TEVA.......cccueurirrirrrisrrs s $ 521 $ 533 $ 972 $ 672
Earnings per share:

BASIC 1vtvtvivtirtee ettt $ 061 $ 068 $ 113 $ 086

DIULEO ...t bbbttt et $ 058 $ 065 $ 109 $ 082
Weighted average number of shares (in millions):

2T ] oSSR 860 778 858 777

DIHULE ...ttt e et b et bttt seer e et eee s 895 836 895 820

* After giving retroactive effect to the adoption of Staff Position No. APB 14-1, “Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments
That May Be Settled in Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement)”, as further described in note 10(a).
**  Represents an amount of less than $0.5 million.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed financial statements.



TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(U.S. dollars in millions)

June 30, December 31,
2009 2008
Unaudited Audited
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENES .........ccviiiiiiiieii et e st e et e st e et e s reesbessaesbeanbesraenben $ 1,761 $ 1,854
SNOIT-LEIM INVESTMENTS ...ttt r bt bt eb bbb et n e nbe e 42 53
PN o010 S CTo=T V7 | o] (R 4,376 4,653
INVENTOTTES ..ttt bbb bbb bk bbb s b s e bR e b st e b et b et eb e e eb e e bt e b e 3,496 3,396
Prepaid expenses and Other CUMTENT BSSELS .......c.iueieieiriee ettt st sr et ee e se e see e seeseeneas 1,360 1,470
QLo - Lo 0 T T L= TS USSP 11,035 11,426
Long-term investments and reCeIVAbIES...........coo i 459 425
Property, plant and eqUIPMENT, NEL ..o e 3,726 3,699
Identifiable INtangible ASSELS, NEL.........coi it 4,349 4,581
GOOUWIIL.... bbb bbbt b e bt et bt bt b e e e b s et e bt e st e e 12,218 12,297
Other assets, deferred taxes and deferred Charges ..o e 464 492*
LI 2= U= TeXT=] SRS $ 32251 §$ 32,920
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
SNOM-LEIM AEDT ..o et s bbb bt s bt s et rerens $ 2028 $ 2,906
Sales reSErveS AN AllOWANCES. .........cocveeiie ettt ettt e et e e e et e e e te e eaeessbeessseebeesseeenteeenreesreas 2,460 2,708
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ...ttt e et e et e s ae e be s b e s be et e s be e e e s be et e neenteanae e 2,129 2,244
Other CUITENE HADTIILIES ........euiiviiceee bbbttt 623 623
Total current HaDIIITIES ..........ccv i e 7,240 8,481
Long-term liabilities:
DETEITEA INCOME TAXES .....viveeiteeiet ettt bt ekt e et bbbt b bbbt b et 1,602 1,723
Other taxes and 10Ng termM PAYADIES .......c.viiiiiiieciee et sreesbe e sre s 655 621
Employee related 0DlIgations..........covcviieieicesc e e 186 182
SENIOT NOTES AN TOANS ...ttt ettt te e e te e et e e etee et e e eaeeebeestteeatesenteesbeeenteeenneesres 3,857 3,654
Convertible SENIOr EDENTUIES........c..iiii e e ettt et 861 1,821*
Total 10ng-term HAaBIIITIES ......ccooiiiiiii bbb e 7,161 8,001
QLo = I T Lo 11 =TS 14,401 16,482
Shareholders’ equity:
Ordinary shares as of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008: authorized — 1,500 million shares; issued
and outstanding 912 million shares and 889 million shares, reSpectively..........ccccovovrvirniniicrennnenen, 49 48
Additional paid-in CAPITAL .......c.eciiieiiic e e e e 12,498 11,673*
LR e LT aT=To T Vg TSRS 5,902 5,191*
Accumulated other COMPreNENSIVE INCOME .......oiviiieiiieie ettt e e sreesaesreans 290 390
Treasury shares — June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 — 38 million ordinary shares ............cc.ccccevne.n. (924) (924)
Teva SharehOlders” BQUILY......cc.iivci et sa et re e s 17,815 16,378
NON-CONEIOHING INTEIESTS ....ouviveieee et sttt resresne e e e 35 60
Total Shareholders’ BQUILY ......cooviiiiiiiireereere et 17,850 16,438
Total liabilities and shareholders’ EQUILY........ccceiiiii i $ 32251 $ 32,920

* After giving retroactive effect to the adoption of Staff Position No. APB 14-1, “Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments
That May Be Settled in Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement)”, as further described in note 10(a).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed financial statements.



TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
(U.S. dollars in millions)

(Unaudited)
Six Months Ended
June 30,
2009 2008
Operating activities:
Net iNCOMe attribUtADIE T0 TEVA.....c..iiiiii ettt $ 972 % 672*
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided from operations:
Depreciation and aMOITIZALION ..........coeiiiieieice et e et e st st e s besresbesbesresrenaesrentenreans 414 246
Deferred INCOME TAXES — NMEL .....iiviiie ittt st e e e s e s e teeseeteebeesesbestentesaenteseenseneenns (137) (154)*
Acquisition of research and develOPMENT IN PrOCESS ......civviieiieieiie it ere et se et e e sbe e reenreenns — 382
TN gl o T 01T 0L B0 = TSI (PSR 2 82
StOCK-DASEA COMPENSALION ..ottt r bbb 25 29
Decrease in WOrKing CaPItal..........cccvoiiioiiei ettt b s re st e s re b e e s 54 232
OENEI TEBIMS — ML, ittt et bbb b st b et b e b e b e bt b e b e e bRt e b e Rt sb e Rt e b e st e bt e b e s e b seebesnene s 61 63*
Net cash provided by Operating aCtiVItieS ..........ccvcviiieiiieiice e 1,391 1,552
Investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and @QUIPIMENT..........c.ciiiiieieecee ettt st e e s (311) (322)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net 0f Cash aCQUITEA ........cc.coueierieieiecee e — (414)
Purchase of iNVesStMENtS and OtNEE @SSELS.......ccuiiieiiiriiii ittt e b ete et e b e sreenreenns (40) (1,353)
Proceeds from realization Of INVESIMENTS ..........oiiiiiiiieiieese bbb 42 1,890
OBNET TEBIMS — NBL.... ettt r b st b e bt b b eb e st r et nr et r e b et benn b nn b nn e 8) 72
Net cash used iN INVESTING ACTIVITIES. .......c.veiiieeiciee ettt sre e saesreseenre e (317) (127)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of Options BY EMPIOYEES ........cveviiiieiiieiecs e 74 45
Excess tax benefit 0N OPtioNS EXEICISEA.........cviiriiiriiiri et 6 12
Proceeds from long-term loans and other long-term liabilities received ..........c.cccoovvviieiivii i 277 3
Discharge of long-term loans and other long-term liabilities...........coovviiiieiiii i (118) (111)
Repayment of bridge loan in connection with the acquisition 0f Barr..........ccccocevveiiiicin s (1,120) —
Net decrease in SNOM-tEIM CIEAIL .........coueiiieiie et sttt sreseenneseesrenreans (13) (128)
[TV o (=T T S o L PSSP (261) (201)
Redemption of convertible SeNior AEDENTUIES...........viii i — (1412)
Net cash used in fINANCING ACTIVITIES .......c..oiiiiie et (1,155) (521)
Translation differences on cash balances of certain subSidiaries .........ccccoccvvvviiiiiiii e, (12) 92
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS ..o (93) 996
Balance of cash and cash equivalents at beginning of Period............cccoviiiiiiiiniii s 1,854 1,488
Balance of cash and cash equivalents at end of PEriod ............ccccoviriiiiiicin s $ 1761 $ 2484

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash financing activities:

During the six months ended June 30, 2009, $719 million principal amount of convertible senior debentures were converted into

approximately 20 million Teva shares.

* After giving retroactive effect to the adoption of Staff Position No. APB 14-1, “Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments

That May Be Settled in Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement)”, as further described in note 10(a).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed financial statements.



TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes To Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

NOTE 1 - Basis of presentation:

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the same basis, with the
exception of the adoption of FASB Staff Position No. APB 14-1 as explained in note 10(a), as the annual consolidated financial
statements and, in the opinion of management, reflects all adjustments, which include only normal recurring adjustments, necessary to
present fairly the financial position and results of operations of Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (“Teva” or the “Company”).
These consolidated financial statements and notes thereto are unaudited and should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited
financial statements included in its Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2008, as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission. The results of operations for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2009 are not necessarily
indicative of results that could be expected for the entire fiscal year.

NOTE 2 - Certain transactions:
a. Acquisition of Barr Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

On December 23, 2008, the Company completed the acquisition of Barr Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“Barr”), a U.S.-based
multinational generic pharmaceutical company with operations mainly in the United States and Europe, for approximately $4.6 billion
in cash and 69 million shares. For accounting purposes, the transaction was valued at approximately $7.5 billion, based on the average
value of our shares during the five trading day period commencing two trading days before the date of the merger agreement. In
addition, Barr’s net debt as of the acquisition date was approximately $1.5 billion.

The consideration for the acquisition was attributed to net assets on the basis of fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. This allocation has not been finalized.

Restructuring provisions recorded were $320 million, mainly related to employee severance, termination of certain agreements
and other exit costs, of which approximately $103 million has been paid through June 30, 2009.

Barr’s results of operations are included in the consolidated financial statements of Teva commencing January 1, 20009.

b. Lonza cooperation agreement

On January 20, 2009, Teva signed a definitive agreement with Lonza Group Ltd. to establish a joint venture to develop,
manufacture and market generic equivalents of a selected portfolio of biologic pharmaceuticals. The joint venture, TL
Biopharmaceuticals AG, commenced activities in May 2009. In connection with the formation of the joint venture, Teva was
reimbursed for related R&D efforts it previously incurred. This reimbursement has been recorded as a reduction in research and
development expenses.

Teva records its share of the joint venture under share in losses of associated companies.

NOTE 3 - Inventories:
Inventories consisted of the following:

June 30, December 31,
2009 2008
U.S. $ in millions
Unaudited Audited

Raw and packaging MAterialS............ccuieieiuiiiiiiiiiiesee ettt b e rns $ 1,152 $ 903
PPOTUCES [N PIOCESS ... cvevitesieteiete ettt ettt r et ne et nne e 561 559
FINISNEA PrOUUCTS ...ttt sttt e e stesne e beenbesbeere e 1,670 1,904
3,383 3,366
Materials in transit and payments 0N aCCOUNT .........ccieriereeieieieieieee e re e reenens 113 30
$ 3,496 $ 3,396




NOTE 4 — Convertible senior debentures:

During the six months ended June 30, 2009, $719 million principal amount of convertible senior debentures were converted into
approximately 20 million Teva shares. Out of the $719 million principle amount, approximately $354 million principal amount is
related to 0.5% convertible senior debentures due 2024 and $365 million principal amount is related to 0.25% convertible senior
debentures due 2024.

NOTE 5 - Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income attributable to Teva by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares (including special shares exchangeable into ordinary shares) outstanding during the period, net of treasury shares.

In computing diluted earnings per share for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, basic
earnings per share was adjusted to take into account the potential dilution that could occur upon: (1) the conversion of the convertible
senior debentures, using the if-converted method, by adding to net income attributable to Teva interest expense on these debentures,
and amortization of issuance costs, net of tax benefits, and by adding to the number of shares the weighted average number of shares
issuable upon assumed conversion of these debentures; and (2) the exercise of options and restricted stock units granted under
employee stock compensation plans, using the treasury stock method.

In computing diluted earnings per share for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2009 and for the six months ended
June 30, 2008, no account was taken of the potential dilution of the convertible senior debentures, amounting to 16 million weighted
average shares, since they had an anti-dilutive effect on earnings per share.

NOTE 6 — Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognized when title to, and risk and reward for, a given product are transferred to the customer, with provisions for
estimated chargebacks, returns, rebates, discounts and shelf stock adjustments established concurrently with the recognition of
revenue, and deducted from sales.

Provisions for chargebacks, returns, rebates and other promotional items are included in “sales reserves and allowances” under
current liabilities. Provision for doubtful debts and prompt payment discounts are netted against “Accounts receivable.”

The calculation is based on historical experience and the specific terms in the individual agreements. Chargebacks are the
largest component of sales reserves and allowances. Provisions for estimating chargebacks are determined using historical chargeback
experience, or expected chargeback levels and wholesaler sales information for new products, which are compared to externally
obtained distribution channel reports for reasonableness. Shelf-stock adjustments are granted to customers based on the existing
inventory of a customer following actual or anticipated decreases in the invoice or contract price of the related product. Where there is
a historical experience to customer returns, Teva records a reserve for estimated sales returns by applying that experience to the
amounts invoiced and the amount of returned products to be destroyed versus product that can be placed back in inventory for resale.

NOTE 7 — Comprehensive income:
Comprehensive income is as follows:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
U.S. $ in millions
2009 2008 2009 2008
Net income attributable t0 TEVA......cvcrieeieirieieirieis et $ 521 $ 533 $ 972 $ 672
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized gain (loss) from available-for-sale securities, net of taX ............cccceevennen, 58 (54) @) (128)
Reclassification adjustment on available for sale securities, net of taX...........ccccvounee, @) 36* @) 82*
Currency translation adjustment, NEt OF tX........cccvvvriiriiriie e 527 145 (86) 736

$ 109 $ 660 $ 872 $ 1,362

* Represents mainly the unrealized loss on marketable securities valued using Level 3 inputs, which was considered other than
temporary and charged to the statement of income.

The above amounts are after deducting amounts attributable to non-controlling interest, which were not material.



NOTE 8 - Financial information by business segments:

Financial reports to Teva’s chief operating decision maker evolve over time as Teva’s business develops and following major
acquisitions. Historically, Teva presented two reportable segments: Pharmaceutical and Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (API). In
2009, following the acquisition of Barr at the end of 2008, Teva commenced certain organizational changes. Following the completion
of these changes, the Company intends to re-evaluate its segment reporting in light of such changes. For purposes of this interim
report, Teva has reported two operating segments as in the past.

a. Financial data relating to reportable operating segments:

Pharmaceutical API Total

U.S. $ in millions

Three months ended June 30, 2009:

Net sales:

TO UNAFFIIAtEd CUSTOMELS .. .iviiiic et rs et eeresre s e saennens $ 3,265 $ 135 $ 3,400
INEEISEOMENT.......oieiiieie ettt r e sr e r e r e en e sr e nn e — 198 198
It ] 1T AEcT: (< STT $ 3265 $ 333 $ 3,598
OPEIALING INCOME......coeuiiiietieeiectetete ettt et tet et ettt et e et et et et e e et et ebe e e et ebeteseetetete e ssebebesssneseterenennas $ 588 $ 178 $ 766
Depreciation and amMOIiZation ............ccccoveveeiiieeiecc ettt $ 216 $ 34 $ 250

Three months ended June 30, 2008:
Net sales:

T UNAFFiliated CUSIOMETS .....cvvivivivcicectctcteic ettt bbb bbb bbb $ 2667 $ 156 $ 2,823
01 C=T 67T | 1<) o SO RSP O PO PP PSR URTPRPPIIN — 296 296
TOLAI NEL SAIES ...vvvrieieieie ettt ne s $ 2,667 $ 452 $ 3,119
OPEIAtING INCOME......cuiviiitetitii sttt ettt ettt e s et et e e st et et e e s bt ebe e s et ebetesnesebebe e snanas 3$ 503 $ 208 $ 711
Depreciation and amOITIZALION ...........coururuiieurieerieieeeieireeees et s e seensesenena $ 91 $ 28 $ 119

Six months ended June 30, 2009:
Net sales:

TO UNAFFIlIATET CUSTOMETS ....ovivieiieieee ettt ettt sttt sttt be e e b e sbesbesbeste st $ 6,254 $ 293 $ 6,547
1 (T 1= =] o S PP PTRUPR — 407 407
TOLAI NEL SAIES ..vvvvivctetcie ettt bbb bbbttt bbbt s b n bt en e r s $ 6,254 $ 700 $ 6,954
OPEIALING INCOME......cviviiiietiteectetete ettt ettt st et ettt ettt s e st et e b e s e e s s et et e e st et ebese e s b ebebe s et et ebeseseanas $ 1,025 $ 323 $ 1,348
Depreciation and amMOIiZation ............cccoviveeiiiiiecie e e 3$ 340 $ 61 $ 401

Six months ended June 30, 2008:
Net sales:

TO UNAFFiliated CUSIOMETS ....vcvvieeieieieirieieieie ettt en $ 5086 $ 309 $ 5,395
INEEISEOMENT.......iieiiiee ettt r e sr e re s r e enesre e nn e — 653 653
TOLAI NEL SAIES ...vvvcvvcrctcee ittt bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb en s $ 5086 $ 962 $ 6,048
OPEIAtING INCOME™ .......o.viitieieeteteee ettt te vt e ettt ettt e e e e et et e e e et ebetese et ebete e s ebebesssnesetere e st $ 506 $ 469 $ 1,065
Depreciation and amMOIiZation .............cccceeveiiiiieieccce ettt $ 187 $ 53 $ 240

* Operating income for the six months ended June 30, 2008 of the pharmaceutical segment included a charge of $382 million
relating to the acquisition of research and development in process as part of the CoGenesys acquisition.



b. The following is a reconciliation of operating income and assets of the reportable segments to the data included in the condensed
consolidated financial statements:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
U.S. $ in millions

2009 2008 2009 2008
Total operating income:
REPOIADIE SEPMENTS ....cvevivivcveie ettt ettt a bt snebens $ 766 $ 711 $ 1,348 $ 1,065
Amounts not allocated to segments:
Profits NOt Yt FEAIIZEA ........ocve e e (43) (47) (62) (61)
General and adminiStration EXPENSES.......ccviueiieereeiiriesieeteseere e sre e e esaesreeeesreesresreens (21) @) (46) (36)
(@1 L =Y o TR — (19) — (33)
Financial eXPEeNSES — NET .........ciiriiieiere e (61) (34) (124) (100)
Consolidated income before INCOME tAXES..........ccvvvviiririiiiiieieeee e $ 641 $ 604 $ 1116 $ 835

NOTE 9 — Fair value measurement:

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157”), for financial
assets and liabilities, and related Financial Staff Positions (FSPs), including FSP FAS 157-3, “Determining the Fair Value of a
Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active” (“FSP FAS 157-3"). This pronouncement defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. As defined in SFAS No. 157
and clarified by FSP FAS 157-3, fair value is based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Additionally, effective January 1, 2009, the Company
implemented SFAS No. 157 for non-financial assets and liabilities as well. The adoption did not have a significant effect on these
financial statements. In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-4, “Determining Whether a Market Is Not Active and a
Transaction Is Not Distressed”. FSP FAS 157-4 provides additional guidance on factors to consider when estimating fair value
consequent to a significant decrease in market activity for a financial asset. As applicable for Teva, this standard became effective for
interim and annual periods ending after June 15, 2009. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

In order to increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements, SFAS No. 157 establishes a fair value hierarchy
that prioritizes observable and unobservable inputs used to measure fair value into three broad levels, which are described below:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for assets or liabilities. The
fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs.

Level 2: Observable prices that are based on inputs not quoted on active markets, but corroborated by market data.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs are used when little or no market data is available. The fair value hierarchy gives the lowest
priority to Level 3 inputs.

In determining fair value, the Company utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize
the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible and considers counterparty credit risk in its assessment of fair value.



Financial items carried at fair value as of June 30, 2009 are classified in the table below in one of the three categories described
above:

June 30, 2009
U.S. $ in millions

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash and cash equivalents:

IMIONEY MAIKELS........vcveveveeeieteeetetetete ettt ettt et sttt s e s st et e s eteseses et esesesesseesneeseeas $ 490 $ — $ — $ 490

Mainly Cash AEPOSIES .......eiveiiierieieiee ettt 1,271 — — 1,271
Marketable securities**

AUCLION Fate SECUNITIES ... .veiviiviiieeiiieiei ettt sttt re et sbesresaesrennen — — 75 75

Collateral debt OblGAtIONS ........ccccvieiiie e, 12 * * 12

EQUILY SECUNTTIES ...evviivieie sttt sttt e ettt e e be e aennee e 61 — — 61

SETUCTUIES .ttt s b et s e st e b e s s b e e b beenaesnee b, — 36 — 36

(@ 1 0T PSPPSR 34 — — 34
DErIVALIVES — NEEF™ % ...ttt se et e e aeereere ) — 61 — 61
TOTAL et er e $ 1868 $ 97 $ 75 $ 2,040

* Represents an amount of less than $0.5 million.

**  Marketable securities consist mainly of debt securities classified as available-for-sale and are recorded at fair value. The fair
value of quoted securities is based on current market value (Level 1 input) or observable prices (Level 2 input). When securities
do not have an active market or observable prices, fair value is determined using a valuation model (Level 3 input). This model
is based on reference to other instruments with similar characteristics, or a discounted cash flow analysis, or other pricing
models making use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

***  Derivatives primarily represent foreign currency and option contracts and interest rate swaps which are valued primarily based
on observable inputs including interest rate curves and both forward and spot prices for currencies.

The following table summarizes the activity for those financial assets where fair value measurements are estimated utilizing
Level 3 inputs.

June 30, 2009
U.S. $in millions

Carrying value as 0f JANUAIY 1, 2009..........ccciviiiiiiiie ittt s et eebeste st s teste st e sbe st et e sae e et esae st eneeseereaneas $ 98
A 03 To U g1 =T =T ?3)
Net change to fair value included in other comprehensive INCOME..........ccoi i (20)
Carrying value as 0f JUNE 30, 2009........c.coiiieeiiieie ettt a e e ss e e e teeteeae et e abestesbesbeste st esaeeebeeeseeneeneneeneas $ 75

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1, “Interim Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial
Instruments” (FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1). FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1 require fair value disclosures in both interim as well as
annual financial statements in order to provide more timely information about the effects of current market conditions on financial
statements. As applicable for Teva, FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1 are effective for interim and annual periods ending after June 15,
2009. The fair values and the carrying amounts of derivatives and senior convertible notes and debentures with an earliest date of
redemption within 12 months are assets of $87 million and liabilities of $986 million at June 30, 2009. The fair value of derivatives
generally reflects the estimated amounts that Teva would receive or pay to terminate the contracts at the reporting dates.

The financial instruments of the Company consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, current and non-
current receivables, short-term credit, accounts payable and accruals, long-term loans and other long-term senior notes and loans,
convertible senior debentures and derivatives.

The fair value of the financial instruments included in working capital and non-current receivables of the Company is usually
identical or close to their carrying value. The fair value of long-term bank loans and senior notes also approximates their carrying
value, since they bear interest at rates close to the prevailing market rates. The fair value of the convertible senior notes and
debentures, included under long-term liabilities, based on quoted market values and prevailing market rates, amounted to $2,611
million at June 30, 2009.
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Changes in fair value of available for sale securities, net of taxes, are reflected in other comprehensive income. Unrealized
losses considered to be temporary are reflected in other comprehensive income; unrealized losses that are considered to be other-than-
temporary are charged to income as an impairment charge. On June, 15, 2009, the Company adopted FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2,
“Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary Impairments” (FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2). FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS
124-2 change the method for determining whether an other-than-temporary impairment exists for debt securities and the amount of the
impairment to be recorded in earnings. The adoption of FASP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2 did not have a material impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

NOTE 10 — Recently adopted accounting pronouncements:
(a) - Accounting for convertible debt instruments that may be settled in cash upon conversion:

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted FASB Staff Position No. APB 14-1, “Accounting for Convertible Debt
Instruments That May Be Settled in Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement)”. The FSP was issued in May 2008,
and requires issuers to account separately for the liability and equity components of convertible debt instruments that may be settled in
cash (including partial cash settlement), in a manner that reflects the issuer’s nonconvertible debt (unsecured debt) borrowing rate
when interest cost is recognized. The FSP requires bifurcation of a component of the debt, classification of that component in equity
and accretion of the resulting discount on the debt to be recognized as part of interest expense in the consolidated statement of
operations. The FSP requires retroactive application to the terms of instruments as they existed for all periods presented. The adoption
of this FSP primarily affects the accounting for the Company’s 0.25% Senior Convertible Debentures due 2026 and 1.75% Senior
Convertible Debentures due 2026.

The retroactive application of this FSP resulted in (i) an increase in the opening balance in 2009 of additional paid-in capital and
a decrease in retained earnings of $175 million and $97 million, respectively, (ii) an increase in financial expenses for the three
months and six months ended June 30, 2008 of $6 million and $15 million, respectively, (iii) a decrease in income taxes for the three
months and six months ended June 30, 2008 of an amount of less than $0.5 million and $1 million, respectively, and (iv) a decrease in
basic earnings per share of $0.01 and $0.02 for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2008, respectively, and a decrease in
diluted earnings per share of $0.01 for the six months ended June 30, 2009.

(b) - Derivative instruments and hedging activities:

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 161 (“FAS 161”),
Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as an amendment to SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities. FAS 161 was issued in March 2008 and requires that objectives for using derivative instruments
be disclosed in terms of underlying risk and accounting designation.

The fair value of derivative instruments is comprised of:

1. Asset derivatives, comprising foreign exchange contracts, designated as hedging instruments under FAS 133. These are
reported under prepaid expenses and other current assets, and the fair value amounted to less than $0.5 million and $13
million at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively.

2. Asset derivatives, comprising primarily foreign exchange contracts, not designated as hedging instruments under FAS
133. These are reported under prepaid expenses and other current assets, and the fair value amounted to $87 million and
$52 million at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively.

3. Liability derivatives, comprising foreign exchange contracts, not designated as hedging instruments under FAS 133.
These are reported under accounts payable, and the fair value amounted to $26 million and $126 million at June 30, 2009
and December 31, 2008, respectively.

Derivatives on foreign exchange contracts not designated as hedging instruments under FAS 133, which hedge Teva’s balance
sheet items from currency exposure, were recognized under financial expenses in the amount of a loss of $70 million and a gain of
$169 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009 and June 30, 2008, respectively, and a gain of $56 million and a gain of $117
million for the three months ended June 30, 2009 and June 30, 2008, respectively. Such gains or losses offset the revaluation of the
balance sheet items booked also under financial expenses. The impact of derivatives designated as hedging instruments under FAS
133 was not material.

(c) - Other recently adopted accounting pronouncements:

In November 2008, the FASB ratified EITF issue No. 08-07, “Accounting for Defensive Intangible Assets” (EITF 08-7). EITF
08-7 gives guidance for accounting for defensive intangible assets subsequent to their acquisition in accordance with SFAS No. 141R
and SFAS No. 157, including the estimated useful life that should be assigned to such assets. EITF 08-7 is effective for intangible
assets acquired on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The
implementation of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP 142-3, “Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets” (“FSP 142-3"). FSP 142-3
amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions on legal and contractual provisions used
to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. FSP 142-3
is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. The implementation of this standard did not have a material impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), “Business Combinations” (“FAS 141R”). FAS 141R
provides revised guidance on how acquirers recognize and measure the consideration, identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed,
contingencies, non-controlling interests and goodwill acquired in a business combination, and expands disclosure requirements
surrounding the nature and financial effects of business combinations. Key changes include: acquired in-process research and
development will no longer be expensed on acquisition, but capitalized and assessed for impairment where relevant and amortized
over its useful life; acquisition costs will be expensed as incurred; restructuring costs will generally be expensed in periods after the
acquisition date; the consideration in shares would be valued at the closing date; and in the event that a deferred tax valuation
allowance relating to a business acquisition, including from prior years, is subsequently reduced, the adjustment will be recognized in
the statement of income. Early adoption is not permitted. As applicable to Teva, this statement became effective, on a prospective
basis, as of January 1, 2009. The adoption of FAS 141R did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements—an
amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin 51” (“FAS 160”), which establishes accounting and reporting standards for non-
controlling interests in a subsidiary and deconsolidation of a subsidiary. Early adoption is not permitted. As applicable to Teva, this
statement became effective as of January 1, 2009. The adoption of FAS 160 did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No.165, “Subsequent Events” (“FAS 165”), which establishes general standards of
accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are
available to be issued. As applicable to Teva, this Statement became effective as of June 15, 2009. In accordance with FAS 165, the
Company has evaluated subsequent events up to the filling date of these financial statements.

NOTE 11 - Recently issued accounting pronouncement:

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No.168, “Accounting Standard Codification” (“FAS 168”). FAS 168 will become the
single authoritative source for U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and will change the way in which the accounting
literature is organized. As applicable to Teva, FAS 168 will be effective commencing September 15, 2009.

NOTE 12 - Contingencies:
General

From time to time, Teva and its subsidiaries are subject to legal claims for damages and/or equitable relief arising in the
ordinary course of business. In addition, as described below, in large part as a result of the nature of its business, Teva is frequently
subject to patent litigation. Teva believes it has meritorious defenses to the actions to which it is a party and expects to pursue
vigorously the defense of each of the ongoing actions, including those described below. Based upon the status of these cases, the
advice of counsel, management’s assessment of such cases and potential exposure involved relative to insurance coverage, except as
otherwise noted below, no provision has been made in Teva’s financial statements for any of such actions. Teva believes that none of
the proceedings described below will have a material adverse effect on its financial condition; however, if one or more of such
proceedings were to result in judgments against Teva, such judgments could be material to its results of operations in a given period.

From time to time, Teva seeks to develop generic products for sale prior to patent expiration in various territories. In the United
States, to obtain approval for most generic products prior to the expiration of the originator’s patent(s), Teva must challenge the
patent(s) under the procedures set forth in the Hatch-Waxman Act of 1984, as amended by the Medicare Prescription Drug
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003. To the extent that it seeks to utilize such patent challenge procedures, Teva is and
expects to be involved in patent litigation regarding the validity, enforceability or infringement of the originator’s patent(s). Teva may
also be involved in patent litigation involving the extent to which alternate manufacturing process techniques may infringe originator
or third-party process patents. Additionally, depending upon a complex analysis of a variety of legal and commercial factors, Teva
may, in certain circumstances, elect to market a generic product even though litigation is still pending. This could be before any court
decision is rendered or while an appeal of a lower court decision is pending. To the extent Teva elects to proceed in this manner, it
could face substantial liability for patent infringement if the final court decision is adverse to Teva. Although the underlying generic
industry legislation, as well as the patent law, is different in other countries where Teva does business, from time to time Teva is also
involved in litigation regarding corresponding patents in those countries. Except as described below, Teva does not have a reasonable
basis to estimate the loss, or range of loss, that is reasonably possible with respect to such patent infringement cases. However, if Teva
were to be required to pay damages in any such case, courts would generally calculate the amount of any such damages based on a
reasonable royalty or lost profits of the patentee. If damages were determined based on lost profits, the amount would be related to the
sales of the branded product. In addition, the launch of an authorized generic and other generic competition may be relevant to the
damages estimation.
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Teva’s business inherently exposes it to potential product liability claims. Teva believes that it maintains product liability
insurance coverage in amounts and with provisions that are reasonable and prudent in light of its business and related risks. However,
Teva sells, and will continue to sell, pharmaceutical products that are not covered by insurance and accordingly may be subject to
claims that are not covered by insurance as well as claims that exceed its policy limits. Product liability coverage for pharmaceutical
companies is becoming more expensive and increasingly difficult to obtain. As a result, Teva may not be able to obtain the type and
amount of coverage it desires.

In connection with third-party agreements, Teva may under certain circumstances be required to indemnify, and may be
indemnified by, in unspecified amounts, the parties to such agreements against third-party claims.

Intellectual Property Proceedings

In October 2004, Alpharma and Teva launched their 100 mg, 300 mg and 400 mg gabapentin capsule products and, in
December 2004, Alpharma and Teva launched their 600 mg and 800 mg gabapentin tablet products. Gabapentin capsules and tablets
are the AB-rated generic versions of Pfizer’s anticonvulsant Neurontin® capsules and tablets, which had annual sales of approximately
$2.7 billion for the twelve months ended September 2004, based on IMS data. Teva’s subsidiary Ivax also launched its non-AB rated
tablets in August 2004 and its AB-rated capsules and tablets in March and April 2005, respectively. In August 2005, the United States
District Court for the District of New Jersey granted summary judgment in favor of Teva, Alpharma and Ivax. On September 21,
2007, the Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit (“Federal Circuit”) reversed the summary judgment decision and remanded the case
for further proceedings. A trial has not been scheduled. The patent at issue expires in 2017. Were Pfizer ultimately to be successful in
its allegation of patent infringement, Teva could be required to pay damages and be enjoined from selling its gabapentin products.
Pursuant to the terms of the agreement with Alpharma, were Pfizer to be successful in its allegation of patent infringement against
Alpharma, Teva may also be required to pay damages related to a portion of the sales of Alpharma’s gabapentin products.

In September and November 2004, Teva commenced sales of Impax Laboratories’ 20 mg and 10 mg omeprazole delayed
release capsules, respectively, which are the AB-rated generic versions of AstraZeneca’s Prilosec® capsules. Prilosec® had sales for the
10 mg capsule of $30 million and 20 mg capsule sales of approximately $532 million, both for the twelve months ended June 2004,
based on IMS data. As provided for in a strategic alliance agreement between Impax and Teva, the parties agreed to certain risk-
sharing arrangements relating to the omeprazole launch. Trial in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New
York of AstraZeneca’s patent infringement litigation against Impax relating to its omeprazole capsules concluded in June 2006.
Following the expiration of the patent in April 2007, the District Court issued a trial opinion in which it found that Impax’s
omeprazole capsules infringed two formulation patents and that those patents were valid. On August 20, 2008, the Federal Circuit
affirmed the District Court’s decision. A separate litigation against Teva with respect to the launch of omeprazole capsules has been
revived, but no trial date has been scheduled. Were AstraZeneca ultimately to be successful in its allegation of patent infringement,
Teva and Impax could be required to pay damages related to a portion of the sales of Impax’s omeprazole capsules.

In May 2007, Teva commenced sales of its 300 mg cefdinir capsule product and 125 mg/5 ml and 250 mg/5 ml cefdinir powder
for oral suspension products. Cefdinir capsules and cefdinir for oral suspension are the AB-rated generic versions of Abbott’s
antibiotic Omnicef®, which had annual sales of approximately $860 million for the twelve months ended December 2006, based on
IMS data. Teva is in litigation with Abbott in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois with respect to a
polymorph patent that expires in 2011. In May 2007, the District Court denied Abbott’s motion for a preliminary injunction, finding
that Abbott was not likely to prevail on the merits as to Teva’s noninfringement defense, based on the record before the Court. On
May 18, 2009, the Federal Circuit affirmed the District Court’s denial of the preliminary injunction. No trial date has been scheduled.
Were Abbott ultimately to be successful in its allegation of patent infringement, Teva could be required to pay damages relating to
sales of its cefdinir products and be enjoined from selling those products.

In May 2007, Teva commenced sales of its 2.5mg/10mg, 5mg/10mg, 5mg/20mg, and 10mg/20mg amlodipine
besylate/benazepril capsules. Amlodipine besylate/benazepril capsules are the AB-rated generic versions of Novartis’ Lotrel®, which
had annual sales of approximately $1.4 billion for the twelve months ended March 2007, based on IMS data. In June 2007, the United
States District Court for the District of New Jersey denied Novartis’ motion for a preliminary injunction, finding that Novartis was not
likely to succeed on its allegations of infringement. The patent at issue expires in 2017. A trial date has not been scheduled. Were
Novartis ultimately to be successful in its allegation of patent infringement, Teva could be required to pay damages related to sales of
its amlodipine besylate/benazepril capsules and be enjoined from selling those products.

In June 2007, Novopharm, Teva’s Canadian subsidiary, commenced sales in Canada of its 2.5 mg, 5 mg, 7.5 mg, 10 mg and 15
mg olanzapine tablets, which are the generic versions of Eli Lilly’s Zyprexa®. Zyprexa® had annual sales in Canada of approximately
$180 million for the twelve months ended May 2007, based on IMS sales. In June 2007, the Federal Court of Canada denied Eli
Lilly’s request for an application to prohibit the Minister of Health from issuing Novopharm’s final regulatory approval. Shortly after
Novopharm’s launch, Lilly filed an action for patent infringement. The trial was completed on April 3, 2009. The patent at issue
expires on April 24, 2011. Were Eli Lilly ultimately to be successful in its allegation of patent infringement, Novopharm could be
required to pay damages related to its sales of olanzapine tablets and be enjoined from selling those products.
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In September 2007, Teva commenced sales of its 125 mg, 250 mg and 500 mg famciclovir tablets, which are the AB-rated
generic versions of Novartis’ Famvir®. Famvir® had annual sales of approximately $200 million for the twelve months ended June
2007. In September 2007, the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey denied Novartis’ motion for a preliminary
injunction, finding that Novartis was not likely to prevail on the merits as to Teva’s invalidity and inequitable conduct defenses, based
on the record before the Court. On June 9, 2008, the Federal Circuit denied Novartis’ appeal of the denial of the preliminary
injunction. Trial is currently scheduled to begin on November 9, 2009. Were Novartis ultimately to be successful in its allegation of
patent infringement, Teva could be required to pay damages relating to the sale of its famciclovir tablets and be enjoined from selling
those products.

In December 2007, Teva commenced sales of its 20 mg and 40 mg pantoprazole sodium tablets. Pantoprazole sodium tablets are
the AB-rated generic versions of Wyeth’s Protonix®, which had annual sales of approximately $2.5 billion for the twelve months
ended September 2007, based on IMS data. In September 2007, the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey denied
Wyeth/Altana’s motion for a preliminary injunction, finding that Wyeth/Altana was not likely to prevail on the merits as to Teva’s
invalidity defense, based on the record before the Court. On May 14, 2009, the Federal Circuit affirmed the District Court’s denial of
the preliminary injunction. The patent at issue expires on January 19, 2011, including pediatric exclusivity. A trial date has not been
scheduled. Were Wyeth/Altana ultimately to be successful in its allegation of patent infringement, Teva could be required to pay
damages relating to the sale of its pantoprazole sodium tablets and be enjoined from further selling those products.

On July 11, 2008, Teva learned that Sandoz Inc., the U.S. generic drug division of Novartis AG, in conjunction with Momenta
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., had filed an ANDA with the FDA for a generic version of Copaxone® (glatiramer acetate) containing Paragraph
IV certifications to each of the patents that Teva has listed in the FDA’s Orange Book for the product. On August 28, 2008, Teva filed
a complaint against Sandoz, Inc., Sandoz International GmbH, Novartis AG and Momenta Pharmaceuticals, Inc. in the United States
District Court for the Southern District of New York, alleging infringement of four Orange Book patents, as well as trade secret
misappropriation claims. The patents, which expire on May 24, 2014, cover the chemical composition of Copaxone®, pharmaceutical
compositions containing it, and methods of using it. The lawsuit has triggered a stay of any FDA approval of the Sandoz ANDA until
the earlier of the expiration of a period of 30 months or a district court decision in Sandoz’s favor. On November 3, 2008, Sandoz, Inc.
and Momenta Pharmaceuticals Inc. filed their answers to Teva’s complaint. The answers assert several affirmative defenses to Teva’s
patent infringement claims, including non-infringement, invalidity and unenforceability of the asserted Orange Book patents. The
answers also seek declaratory judgments of non-infringement, invalidity and unenforceability with respect to three unasserted Orange
Book patents and two non-Orange Book patents. On December 11, 2008, Sandoz International GmbH and Novartis AG brought a
motion to dismiss Teva’s patent claims on personal jurisdiction grounds. Those defendants are also seeking to dismiss Teva’s trade
secret misappropriation claims, alleging that the Court has no jurisdiction over the trade secret claims. No trial date has been
scheduled.

In August 2008, Barr commenced sales of its 4 mg, 8 mg and 12 mg galantamine immediate release (IR) tablets. Galantamine
IR tablets are the AB-rated generic versions of Ortho-McNeil and Janssen’s Razadyne®, which had annual sales of approximately $98
million for the twelve months ending September 2008, based on IMS data. Prior to launching the product, the United States District
Court for the District of Delaware held that the one Orange Book method patent, which expired in December 2008, was invalid. Oral
argument on Ortho-McNeil and Janssen’s appeal was heard on June 3, 2009. Were Ortho-McNeil and Janssen ultimately to be
successful in their allegations of patent infringement, Barr could be required to pay damages relating to the sale of its galantamine IR
tablets.

In October 2008, Barr commenced sales of its 8 mg, 16 mg and 24 mg galantamine extended release (ER) capsules.
Galantamine ER capsules are the AB-rated generic versions of Ortho-McNeil and Janssen’s Razadyne ER®, which had annual sales of
approximately $110 million for the twelve months ending September 2008, based on IMS data. The case involved two patents — a
formulation patent and a method patent. The United States District Court for the District of New Jersey dismissed the allegations with
respect to the formulation patent. The method patent was held invalid in the litigation involving galantamine IR, and oral argument
was heard on June 3, 2009. Were Ortho-McNeil and Janssen ultimately to be successful in their appeal of the method patent, Barr
could be required to pay damages relating to the sale of its galantamine ER capsules.

Product Liability Matters

Barr and Duramed have been named as defendants in approximately 6,000 personal injury product liability cases brought
against them and other manufacturers by plaintiffs claiming injuries from the use of certain estrogen and progestin products. The cases
primarily involve medroxyprogesterone acetate (a progestin that has been prescribed to women receiving estrogen-containing
hormone therapy), and a much smaller number involve Cenestin (an estrogen-containing product sometimes prescribed to treat
symptoms associated with menopause). A high percentage of the plaintiffs were unable to demonstrate actual use of a Barr or
Duramed product. As a result, approximately 5,450 cases have been dismissed, leaving approximately 500 pending. To date, Barr and
Duramed products have been identified in 487 of those cases. Additional dismissals are expected. Barr believes it has viable defenses
to the allegations in the complaints and is defending the actions vigorously.
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Commercial Matters

In April 2004, Rhodes Technologies and Napp Technologies (“Rhodes/Napp”) filed a complaint in Massachusetts Superior
Court, seeking an equal share of the value to Teva of the settlement of certain claims between GlaxoSmithKline and Teva relating to
Teva’s nabumetone products. The allegations are based upon the termination of a nabumetone API supply agreement between Teva
and Rhodes/Napp. Teva originally assessed the value of the product rights received in connection with the settlement at $100 million
and subsequently recorded impairment charges of $52 million in the aggregate relating to this product. Oral argument on the parties’
cross-motions for summary judgment was held in April 2006. In April 2007, the Superior Court granted Teva’s motion for summary
judgment, dismissing Rhodes/Napp’s claims against Teva. On July 14, 2009, the Massachusetts Appeals Court affirmed the granting
of summary judgment in Teva’s favor. Rhodes/Napp may seek further appellate review of this decision, but the review is
discretionary, and not as of right.

In October 2005, plaintiffs Agvar Chemicals Inc., Ranbaxy Laboratories, Inc., and Ranbaxy Pharmaceuticals, Inc. filed suit
against Barr in the Superior Court of New Jersey. In their complaint, plaintiffs sought to recover damages and other relief, based on an
alleged breach of a contract whereby Barr was to purchase from Ranbaxy raw material for its generic Allegra product. In February
2009, Barr settled its claims with Agvar and in April it settled its claims with Ranbaxy.

Environmental Matters

Teva’s subsidiaries, including those in the United States and its territories, are party to a number of proceedings brought under
the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, commonly known as the Superfund law, or other
national, federal, provincial or similar state and local laws imposing liability for the investigation and remediation of releases of
hazardous substances and for natural resource damages. These proceedings seek to require the generators of hazardous wastes
disposed of at a third-party owned site, or the party responsible for a release of hazardous substances into the environment that
impacted a site, to investigate and clean up the sites or to pay for such activities and any related damages to natural resources. Teva
has been made a party to these proceedings, along with other potentially responsible parties, as an alleged generator of wastes that
were disposed of or treated at third-party waste disposal sites, or as a result of an alleged release from one of Teva’s (or its
predecessors’) facilities or former facilities that may have adversely impacted a site. In many of these cases, the government or private
litigants allege that the responsible parties are jointly and severally liable for the investigation and cleanup costs. Although the liability
among the responsible parties may be joint and several, these proceedings are frequently resolved so that the allocation of cleanup
costs among the parties reflects the relative contributions of the parties to the site conditions and takes into account other equitable
factors. Teva’s potential liability varies greatly at each of the sites in the proceedings; for some sites the costs of the investigation,
cleanup and natural resource damages have not yet been determined, and for others Teva’s allocable share of liability has not been
determined. At other sites, Teva has been paying its share, but the amounts have not been, and are not expected to be, material. Teva
has taken an active role in identifying these costs, which do not include reductions for potential recoveries of cleanup costs from
insurers, former site owners or operators. While it is not feasible to predict the outcome of many of these proceedings, Teva believes
that they should not ultimately result in any liability that would have a material adverse effect on its financial position, results of
operations or liquidity and capital resources.

Competition, Pricing and Regulatory Matters

In April 2006, Teva and Barr were sued, along with Cephalon, Inc., Mylan Laboratories, Inc., Ranbaxy Laboratories Ltd. and
Ranbaxy Pharmaceuticals, Inc., in a class action lawsuit filed in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania. The case alleges generally that the settlement agreements entered into between the different generic pharmaceutical
companies and Cephalon, in their respective patent infringement cases involving finished modafinil products (the generic version of
Provigil®), were unlawful because the settlement agreements resulted in the exclusion of generic competition. The case seeks
unspecified monetary damages, attorneys’ fees and costs. The case was brought by King Drug Company of Florence, Inc. on behalf of
itself and as a proposed class action on behalf of any other person or entity that purchased Provigil® directly from Cephalon from
January 2006 until the alleged unlawful conduct ceases. Similar allegations have been made in a number of additional complaints,
including those filed on behalf of proposed classes of direct and indirect purchasers of the product, by an individual indirect purchaser
of the product and by Apotex, Inc. The cases seek various forms of injunctive and monetary relief, including treble damages and
attorneys’ fees and costs. In February 2008, following an investigation of these matters, the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”) sued
Cephalon, alleging that Cephalon violated Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, which prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or
practices in the marketplace, by unlawfully maintaining a monopoly in the sale of Provigil® and improperly excluding generic
competition. The FTC’s complaint does not name Teva or Barr as a defendant.
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Teva Pharmaceuticals USA, Inc. (“Teva USA”) is a defendant, along with Biovail Corp. and Elan Corporation, plc, in several
civil actions currently pending in the United States District Court for the District of Columbia. The cases allege generally that
arrangements between Biovail and Elan relating to sales of nifedipine cc extended release tablets, in connection with which Teva USA
acted as a distributor for Biovail, were unlawful under the federal antitrust laws. The challenged arrangements were previously the
subject of a consent decree entered into by the FTC with Biovail and Elan, to which Teva USA was not a party. The complaints seek
unspecified monetary damages, attorneys’ fees and costs. Four of the cases were brought on behalf of alleged classes of persons who
allegedly purchased nifedipine cc extended release tablets made by Elan or Biovail in the United States directly from Teva USA; two
of the cases were brought individually by alleged direct purchasers.

Together with many other pharmaceutical manufacturers, Teva and/or its subsidiaries in the United States, including Teva USA,
Sicor Inc. (“Sicor™), Ivax, and Barr (collectively, the “Teva parties”), are defendants in a number of cases pending in state and federal
courts throughout the country that relate generally to drug price reporting by manufacturers. Such price reporting is alleged to have
caused governments and others to pay inflated reimbursements for covered drugs.

Class actions and other cases have been filed against over two dozen pharmaceutical manufacturers, including Sicor, regarding
allegedly inflated reimbursements or payments under Medicare or certain insurance plans. These cases were consolidated under the
federal multi-district litigation procedures and are currently pending in the United States District Court for the District of
Massachusetts (the “MDL”). In March 2008, the “Track 2” defendants in the MDL, including Sicor, entered into a settlement
agreement to resolve the MDL. The court granted preliminary approval of the amended MDL settlement in July 2008 and deferred
final approval of the settlement to allow for the resolution of certain notice issues. Sicor is also a defendant in an action brought under
the federal False Claims Act, but has not yet been served with the complaint. This matter is under seal and includes many of the same
defendants as the MDL. A provision for these matters, including Sicor’s share of the MDL settlement payment, has been included in
the financial statements.

A number of state attorneys general, approximately 47 counties in New York and the City of New York have also filed various
actions relating to drug price reporting. The Teva parties (either collectively or individually) are currently involved in one or more
actions relating to reimbursements under Medicaid or other programs in the following 17 states: Alabama, Alaska, Arizona, Florida,
Hawaii, Idaho, Illinois, lowa, Kansas, Kentucky, Mississippi, Missouri, New York, South Carolina, Texas, Utah and Wisconsin. In
addition to its action relating to its Medicaid program, the state of South Carolina has brought an action in the South Carolina state
courts on behalf of its state health plan. Sicor definitively settled the action brought by the state of Arizona and certain Teva parties
reached a settlement in principle to resolve the action brought by the state of Alabama. A provision has been included in the financial
statements for both settlements. Trials for certain Teva parties have been scheduled for January 2010 in the Texas action and June
2010 in the Hawaii action.

In May 2008, the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts unsealed a drug pricing action against several
generic pharmaceutical companies, including various Teva parties. The action was filed by a private party pursuant to the federal False
Claims Act, and it alleges, on behalf of the federal government, drug pricing claims arising from the federal government’s
contributions to the various state Medicaid programs. According to the complaint, the federal government declined to intervene in the
litigation. The foregoing drug pricing cases, which seek unspecified amounts in money damages, civil penalties, treble damages,
punitive damages, attorneys fees, and/or administrative, injunctive, equitable or other relief, are at various stages of litigation, and the
Teva parties continue to defend them vigorously.

The Office of the United States Attorney for the District of Massachusetts (the “U.S. Attorney”) and the Civil Division of the
Department of Justice (the “Civil Division”) initiated an investigation of allegations that IVAX Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“IPI”) caused
Omnicare, Inc. to file false or tainted claims for Medicare and/or Medicaid reimbursement, in violation of law, by directly or indirectly
offering or paying remuneration to Omnicare, Inc., to induce it to recommend, prescribe or purchase IPI’s products. IPI cooperated in
the investigation. In April 2008, the U.S. Attorney advised IPI’s counsel that criminal charges would not be brought against IPI. The
U.S. Attorney and the Civil Division, however, continued their investigation into potential violations of the False Claims Act. IPI
reached a settlement in principle with the U.S. Attorney and the Civil Division, and a provision for the settlement amount has been
included in the financial statements.

Barr has been named as a co-defendant with Bayer Corporation, The Rugby Group, Inc. and others in approximately 38 class
action complaints filed in state and federal courts by direct and indirect purchasers of Ciprofloxacin (Cipro) from 1997 to the present.
The complaints allege that a 1997 Bayer-Barr patent litigation settlement agreement was anti-competitive and violated federal antitrust
laws and/or state antitrust and consumer protection laws. A prior investigation of this agreement by the Texas Attorney General’s
office on behalf of a group of state attorneys general was closed without further action in December 2001. In March 2005, the court in
the federal multi-district litigation granted summary judgment in Barr’s favor and dismissed all of the federal actions before it. In
November 2007, the Second Circuit transferred the appeal involving the indirect purchaser plaintiffs to the United States Court of
Appeals for the Federal Circuit, while retaining jurisdiction over the appeals of the direct purchaser plaintiffs. On October 15, 2008,
the Federal Circuit affirmed the grant of summary judgment in the defendants’ favor on all claims by the indirect purchaser plaintiffs.
The plaintiffs” petition for panel rehearing and rehearing en banc was denied on December 23, 2008 and the mandate issued on
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December 30, 2008. The plaintiffs filed a petition for certiorari to the United States Supreme Court, which was denied on June 22,
2009. Briefing in the direct purchaser plaintiffs’ appeal in the Second Circuit is complete, and oral argument was heard on April 28,
2009. All but three of the state cases have been dismissed. Following an earlier stay of the California case, the parties briefed
summary judgment motions, and oral argument on those motions is scheduled for August 21, 2009. The Kansas action is stayed, and
the Florida action is in the very early stages, with no hearings or schedule set to date. Barr believes that its agreement with Bayer is a
valid settlement to a patent suit and cannot form the basis of an antitrust claim.

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The following discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements, which express the current beliefs and expectations
of management. Such statements involve a number of known and unknown risks and uncertainties that could cause our future results,
performance or achievements to differ significantly from the results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such
forward-looking statements. Important factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include risks relating to: our ability
to successfully develop and commercialize additional pharmaceutical products, the introduction of competing generic equivalents, the
extent to which we may obtain U.S. market exclusivity for certain of our new generic products and regulatory changes that may
prevent us from utilizing exclusivity periods, potential liability for sales of generic products prior to a final resolution of outstanding
patent litigation, including that relating to the generic versions of Neurontin®, Lotrel® and Protonix®, current economic conditions,
competition from brand-name companies that are under increased pressure to counter generic products, or competitors that seek to
delay the introduction of generic products, the effects of competition on our innovative products, especially Copaxone® sales,
dependence on the effectiveness of our patents and other protections for innovative products, especially Copaxone®, the impact of
consolidation of our distributors and customers, the impact of pharmaceutical industry regulation and pending legislation that could
affect the pharmaceutical industry, our ability to achieve expected results though our innovative R&D efforts, the difficulty of
predicting U.S. Food and Drug Administration, European Medicines Agency and other regulatory authority approvals, the
uncertainty surrounding the legislative and regulatory pathway for the registration and approval of biotechnology-based products, the
regulatory environment and changes in the health policies and structures of various countries, supply interruptions or delays that
could result from the complex manufacturing of our products and our global supply chain, our ability to successfully identify,
consummate and integrate acquisitions, the potential exposure to product liability claims to the extent not covered by insurance, our
exposure to fluctuations in currency, exchange and interest rates, significant operations worldwide that may be adversely affected by
terrorism, political or economical instability or major hostilities, our ability to enter into patent litigation settlements and the
intensified scrutiny by the U.S. government, the termination or expiration of governmental programs and tax benefits, impairment of
intangible assets and goodwill, environmental risks, and other factors that are discussed in our Annual Report on Form 20-F for the
year ended December 31, 2008, in this report and in our other filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™).

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which they are made, and we undertake no obligation to update any
forward-looking statements or other information contained in this report, whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise. You are advised, however, to consult any additional disclosures we make in our reports to the SEC on Form 6-K. Also note
that we provide a cautionary discussion of risks and uncertainties under *““Risk Factors™ in our Annual Report on Form 20-F for the
year ended December 31, 2008. These are factors that we believe could cause our actual results to differ materially from expected
results. Other factors besides those listed could also adversely affect us. This discussion is provided as permitted by the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

Results of Operations
Comparison of Three Months Ended June 30, 2009 to Three Months Ended June 30, 2008
General

Highlights of the second quarter of 2009 included the following:

. Teva’s net sales reached $3,400 million, an increase of 20% ($577 million) over the second quarter of 2008. Operating
income for the quarter was $702 million, an increase of 10% from the comparable quarter of 2008;

. An increase of 35% in U.S. generic pharmaceutical sales, attributable to the inclusion of Barr’s U.S. sales and the launch
of the generic version of Adderall XR® (mixed amphetamine salts ER);

. Record global in-market sales of Copaxone® of $682 million, an increase of 21% over the comparable quarter of 2008;
. Record international sales of $515 million, an increase of 18% over the second quarter of 2008;

. An increase of 31% in Azilect® sales and 13% in sales of global respiratory products, compared to the second quarter of
2008;

. An adverse effect on sales of approximately $256 million resulting from the appreciation of the U.S. dollar, which also
affected other line items, but had a negligible impact on operating income;
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. Cash flow from operating activities of $658 million, compared to $806 million in the second quarter of 2008; and

. A decrease in total debt of $1.7 billion, mainly due to repayment of bridge loans used to finance the acquisition of Barr
and conversion of $719 million of Teva’s convertible debentures due 2024 into equity, resulting in a financial leverage
ratio of approximately 27%.

Financial Data

The following table sets forth certain financial data presented as a percentage of net sales for the periods indicated and the
percentage change from the second quarter of last year.

Percentage of Net Sales

Period to
Three Months Period
Ended June 30, Percentage
2009 2008 Change
% % %
INBE SAIES ... bbb bbb ek bk bbbt bbbt b 100.0 100.0 20
LT 0TIy o] 0] 1 SRS 52.0 53.3 18
Research and developmeNnt EXPENSES .........ccveirieirieirieinreti e 5.0 7.0 (15)
Selling and MArketing EXPENSES........ccvivviirerererereieree et e resre et sreseesaesreeesaeneeneereans 19.1 17.7 30
General and admMiNiStratiVe EXPENSES ........ovviririeriierei e 5.8 6.0 17
Litigation settlements, impairment and reStruCturing eXPENSES ......c.ccvveveriveriesieesresieesieseeneas 15 — 100
L@ oL 1T aTo T g Lol ] o T S 20.6 22.6 10
FINANCIal EXPENSES —NEL .....veiieeiiciie sttt sra e beereesreanee e 1.8 1.2 79
INCOME DEFOIE INCOME TAXES .....veeiiiiii e 18.8 214 6
Provision fOr INCOME tAXES........coviieieiiieiieeeieeie ettt e s e enes 2.8 2.4 44
Share in losses of associated COMPANIES — NEL.......ccvvviiiiieiiieie e 0.6 * 1900
Net income attributable to non-controlling INErestS...........ccvevreiierninceeee 0.1 0.1 —
Net income attributabIe 10 TEVA......ccoi i 15.3 18.9 2

* Represents a percentage less than 0.05%.

Sales — General

Net sales for the three months ended June 30, 2009 reached $3,400 million, an increase of 20% over the comparable quarter of
2008. The growth in sales, which occurred in many of Teva’s businesses, regions and products, was partially offset by the weakening
of several currencies against the U.S. dollar. Teva’s sales in the quarter included sales of Barr and Bentley, which were not included in
the comparable quarter of 2008.

Sales By Geographical Area

U.S. Dollars in Millions
Three Months Ended

Percent
June 30, Change 2009
2009 2008 from 2008 % of 2009
Lo (I T o7 $ 2108 $ 1,573 34% 62%
BUFOPE™ ..o e e s e s e es s 777 814 (5)% 23%
INEEMNALIONAL .......cviiiiiecc e 515 436 18% 15%
L1011 $ 3,400 $ 2,823 20% 100%

*  All members of the European Union as well as Switzerland and Norway.
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Sales By Business Segment

U.S. Dollars in Millions

Three Months Ended Percent
June 30, Change 2009
2009 2008 from 2008 % of 2009
PharMaCeULICAIS ........veiiiiiii it sbae e $ 3,265 $ 2,667 22% 96%
A P L e aareas 135 156 (13)% 4%
0] - | IR $ 3,400 $ 2,823 20% 100%

* Third-party sales only.

Pharmaceutical Sales

Pharmaceutical sales during the three months ended June 30, 2009 were $3,265 million, or 96% of net sales, which represented
an increase of 22 % over the second quarter of 2008. The following table shows the geographic breakdown of these sales:

Pharmaceutical Sales

U.S. Dollars in Millions

Three Months Ended Percent

June 30, Change 2009
2009 2008 from 2008 % of 2009
NN o] 1 TN <Y o TS $ 2,052 $ 1,505 36% 63%
EUTOPE™ v es e 732 762 (4)% 22%
INEEINALIONAL......eoiiiiii i sbae s 481 400 20% 15%
I ] = $ 3,265 $ 2,667 22% 100%

* All members of the European Union as well as Switzerland and Norway.

North America

Pharmaceutical sales in North America for the three months ended June 30, 2009 reached $2,052 million, an increase of 36%
over the comparable quarter of 2008. This increase was a result of the following factors:

. An increase of 35% in U.S. generic sales, attributable primarily to the inclusion of Barr’s U.S. sales and the launch of the
generic version of Adderall XR® (mixed amphetamine salts ER) as well as continued strong sales of generic versions of
Lotrel® (amlodipine benazapril), Yasmin® (drospirenone and ethinyl estradiol), Protonix® (pantoprazole) and Imitrex®
(sumatriptan), which were partially offset by lower sales of budeprion XL and risperidone due to the loss of exclusivity;

. An increase of 32% in U.S. in-market sales of Copaxone® to $438 million, due to price increases; and

. An increase of 28% in U.S. sales of respiratory products over the comparable quarter in 2008, primarily due to sustained
growth in sales of ProAir™ resulting from the HFA conversion.

Teva has continued to expand its leading market share in the U.S. among all pharmaceutical companies — both generic and brand
— with total prescriptions increasing by over 67 million to reach 625 million in the twelve months ended June 30, 2009, or 16.5% of
total prescriptions for such period. In the same twelve-month period, Teva’s generic prescriptions increased by over 60 million to
reach 598 million, or 23.4% of total generic prescriptions.

During the second quarter of 2009, Teva launched five new products in the U.S., which were generic versions of the following
branded products (listed in order of launch date): Adderall® XR (mixed amphetamine salts ER), Topamax® capsules (topiramate),
Cellcept® tablets and capsules (mycophenolate mofetil), and Urso® tablets (ursodiol). In addition, generic versions of the following
additional 17 branded products were sold during the second quarter in the U.S. that were not sold in the comparable quarter of 2008
(listed in order of launch date): Lamictal® tablets (lamotrigene), Depakote® CP (divalproex sodium DR), Vibramycin® (doxycycline
FOS), Adenocard® (adenosine PFS), Cardene® (nicardipine HCI injection), Zithromax® (azithromycin FOS), Diflucan® (fluconazole
FOS), Pravachol® 80mg (pravastatin), Teva label phenylephrine, Cardizem® (diltiazem injection), Hespan® (6% hetastarch in 0.9%
sodium chloride), Keppra® (levetiracetam), Risperdal® solution (risperidone), Imitrex® injection and tablets (sumatriptan), Solodyn®
ER (minocycline) and Topamax® tablets (topiramate).
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In addition, on June 30, 2009, Teva launched Tri-Lo Sprintec, a generic version of Ortho McNeil Janssen’s (“OMJ”) oral
contraceptive, Ortho Tri-Cyclen® Lo (ethinyl estradiol and norgestimate). No revenue from such launch was recognized in the second
quarter. Shipments were ceased pending the outcome of litigation in a patent infringement lawsuit brought by OMJ. On July 24, 2009,
Teva entered into a definitive agreement with OMJ to settle the lawsuit. Under the terms of the settlement, Teva obtained a release for
past sales of its generic product in exchange for a royalty payment, as well as a license to re-enter the market on December 31, 2015,
or earlier in certain circumstances. The settlement became effective on July 29, 2009.

Below are the abbreviated new drug application (“ANDA”) approvals Teva received from the FDA during the second quarter of
2009:

Annual Brand Sales

Product Form Approval Date Brand Name ($ in millions)

ibandronate sodium...........cccceveevennne. Injection vials 4/3/09*  Boniva® $ 67
tOPIramate .....c.coveveeeiereeeeeec e Capsules 4/17/09  Topamax® sprinkle $ 55
mycophenalate mofetil..................... Tablets 5/4/09  Cellcept® $ 680
mycophenalate mofetil.............c......... Capsules 5/6/09  Cellcept® $ 367
UrSOION .. Tablets 5/13/09  Urso® $ 76
moxifloxacin ophthalmic ................. Solution 5/14/09*  Vigamox® $ 223
montelukast sodium ..........cc.cecvvenene. Tablets 5/21/09*  Singulair® $ 2,583
zoledronic acid........cc.ccecevevevieiieinenns Injection 6/9/09*  Zometa® $ 703
montelukast sodium ..........cc.ccecevenene. Chewable tablets 6/25/09*  Singulair® $ 833
ethinyl estradiol/norgestimate............ Tablets 6/29/09  Ortho Tri-Cyclen®Lo  $ 400

* Tentative approval.

Teva expects that its sales in North America will continue to be fueled by its strong U.S. generic pipeline, which, as of July 21,
2009, included 198 product applications awaiting final FDA approval, including 42 tentative approvals. The branded products covered
by these applications had annual U.S. sales of approximately $110 billion. Approximately 132 of these were “Paragraph I\V”
applications. Teva believes it is the first to file on 82 of the Paragraph IV applications, which relate to branded products having
aggregate annual sales in the U.S. in excess of $54 billion.

In the second quarter of 2009, Teva Animal Health experienced a decrease in sales as a result of operational issues at its
facilities in St. Joseph, Missouri. Teva expects these issues to continue to affect the financial results of Teva Animal Health, which are
not material to Teva, until a recovery plan is fully implemented.

Europe

Teva’s pharmaceutical sales in Europe totaled $732 million, a decrease of 4% from the second quarter of 2008. An increase of
approximately 20% in sales in local currency terms was offset by currency effects, due to the strengthening of the U.S. dollar, which
resulted in a decrease of sales. Teva’s second-quarter European sales, compared to the second quarter of 2008, also reflect the
following factors:

. Strong sales in Germany, Poland and the U.K., mainly attributable to Pliva’s integration;

. Increased sales in Spain, mainly due to the integration of Bentley; and

. An increasingly challenging competitive environment in certain countries, despite which Teva’s market position in key
markets grew or remained strong.

As of June 30, 2009, Teva had received 464 generic drug approvals in Europe relating to 109 compounds in 225 formulations,
including three European Medicines Agency (EMEA) approvals valid in all EU member states. In addition, as of June 30, 2009, Teva
had approximately 3,275 marketing authorization applications pending approval in 29 European countries, relating to 214 compounds
in 448 formulations, including 15 applications pending with the EMEA.

International

Teva’s International group, which includes countries other than the U.S., Canada, EU member states, Norway and Switzerland,
had record pharmaceutical sales of $481 million in the second quarter of 2009, an increase of 20% over the second quarter of 2008.
This increase was due primarily to the inclusion of Pliva’s sales in Russia and Croatia and strong sales in certain Latin American
countries and Israel. In local currency terms, International sales grew by 35%.

Teva’s International group generated approximately 40% of its sales in Latin America, 29% in non-EU member states in the
CEE region, 24% in Israel and 7% in other countries.
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Innovative and Specialty Products

Copaxone®. During the second quarter of 2009, global in-market sales of Copaxone®, Teva’s leading innovative drug for the
treatment of multiple sclerosis, reached a record of $682 million, an increase of 21% over the comparable quarter of 2008. U.S. in-
market sales increased 32% to $438 million as a result of price increases. U.S. sales accounted for 64% of global Copaxone® in-market
sales in the second quarter of 2009, compared with 59% in the comparable quarter of 2008. Unit growth in several non-U.S. markets,
including Germany, Italy, Spain, the U.K., Russia, Brazil and Turkey, resulted in a 5% increase in in-market sales to $244 million. In
local currency terms, in-market sales outside the U.S. grew by 26%.

To date, Copaxone® has been approved for marketing in 52 countries worldwide, including the U.S., Canada, Israel, all
EU countries, Switzerland, Australia, Russia, Mexico, Brazil and Argentina. Copaxone® continued to be the leading MS therapy
worldwide and in the U.S. and Canada, reaching record U.S. market shares in terms of new and total prescriptions of 37.2% and
38.1%, respectively, according to June 2009 IMS data.

Azilect®. Azilect® (rasagiline tablets), Teva’s once-daily treatment for Parkinson’s disease, continued to establish itself in the
U.S. and Europe. Despite unfavorable currency trends, global in-market sales in the quarter reached $55 million compared to $42
million in the second quarter of 2008, an increase of 31%, attributable primarily to growth in the U.S. and increased sales in Europe,
mainly in Spain and Italy. During the quarter Azilect® was launched in Russia and is now available in 38 countries. In local currencies,
global in-market sales of Azilect® grew by 44%.

As Teva’s preparatory activities and discussions with the FDA relating to the ADAGIO study remain on-going, the timing of
Teva’s planned filing for a label extension for Azilect® 1 mg has not been determined.

Respiratory. Teva’s global respiratory business recorded sales of $189 million in the second quarter of 2009, an increase of 13%
compared to $168 million in the second quarter of 2008. Sales in the U.S. grew to $106 million, a 28% increase over the comparable
quarter in the prior year, primarily due to growth in ProAir™ unit sales. ProAir™ continues to maintain its leading market share of
58% in the short-acting beta agonist (SABA) category as the conversion to HFA has essentially been completed. Concurrently, Qvar®
increased its market share in the U.S., and is now second in new prescriptions in the inhaled corticosteroid category. Sales of Qvar®
increased in the main markets in Europe as well, most notably in the U.K.

Women’s Health. Teva’s women’s health business, which was part of the Barr acquisition, reached sales of $80 million, an
increase of 4% from $77 million sold by Barr in the comparable quarter in 2008. This sales figure represents proprietary women’s
health products only and is different from the figure previously reported by Barr as its overall proprietary sales. The increase in sales
is attributable to an increase in the sales of Plan B® (2 Tab), offset by lower sales of non-promoted products that faced generic
competition and inventory decreases by certain customers. The decline from the first quarter of 2009 is attributable to a decrease in
inventory levels by customers of certain products, particularly Plan B® (2 Tab), in advance of the launch of Plan B® One-Step, which
occurred in late July.

Sales of Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (API)

API sales to third parties were $135 million this quarter, a decrease of 13% from the second quarter of 2008. The decline is
partially the result of the fact that sales to Barr and Pliva, which previously were recorded as sales to third parties, are now accounted
for as internal sales.

Gross Profit

Gross profit margin was 52.0% in the second quarter of 2009, compared to 53.3% for the second quarter of 2008. The decrease
in gross margin is due to higher amortization of purchased intangible assets and an inventory step-up of $76 million related to the Barr
acquisition.

Research and Development (R&D) Expenses

Net R&D spending for the quarter was $169 million (5% of net sales), more than half of which went to generic R&D. Such
amount represents a 15% decrease from the comparable quarter of 2008. TL Biopharmaceuticals AG, Teva’s joint venture with Lonza
Group Ltd., reimbursed Teva approximately $40 million for certain R&D efforts incurred prior to the formation of the joint venture,
which resulted in a decline in net R&D expenses despite growth in gross R&D expenses. Through this joint venture, which was
announced in January 2009, Teva and Lonza will develop, manufacture and market a portfolio of biosimilars. The Teva share in the
joint venture expenses — approximately $20 million — is reflected in the income statement under share in losses of associated
companies. Teva continues to increase its R&D spending in accordance with its strategic plan to double generic R&D output from its
2007 level by 2012, and to expand R&D activity in biogenerics and its innovative and branded franchises.
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Selling and Marketing (S&M) Expenses

S&M expenses, which represented 19.1% of net sales, amounted to $649 million in the second quarter of 2009, as compared to
17.7% of net sales and $500 million in the second quarter of 2008. The increase is primarily due to the larger proportion of innovative
and branded products in Teva’s sales, including respiratory products and women’s health care products, as well as branded generics in
many of Teva’s international markets, which have higher associated selling costs.

General and Administrative (G&A) Expenses

G&A expenses were $197 million in the second quarter of 2009, essentially unchanged as a percentage of net sales (5.8%) from
the second quarter of 2008. This stability was achieved while Teva continued to make progress integrating Barr’s operations.

Operating Income

Operating income reached $702 million in the second quarter of 2009, compared to $638 million for the second quarter of 2008.
This operating income was achieved after taking into account $52 million of expenses relating to legal settlements and restructuring
activities. As a percentage of net sales, operating margins were influenced significantly by the amortization of purchased intangible
assets and an inventory step-up related to the acquisition of Barr, partially offset by a mix of more profitable products, continued Barr
integration synergies and on-going cost reduction efforts.

Financial Expenses

Net financial expenses for the second quarter of 2009 were $61 million, compared with expenses of $34 million during the
comparable quarter of 2008, and reflect increased interest expense resulting from the financing of the Barr acquisition. Net financial
expenses in 2008 included a write-down of $25 million of auction rate securities.

Tax Rate

The provision for taxes for the second quarter of 2009 amounted to $98 million, or 15.3% of pre-tax income of $641 million,
reflecting an estimated annual tax rate of 11%. The provision for taxes in the comparable quarter of 2008 was $68 million, or 11% of
pre-tax income.

President Obama’s administration has recently announced initiatives that would substantially reduce Teva’s ability to defer U.S.
taxes on the income of non-U.S. subsidiaries of Teva USA, including the potential elimination or deferral of U.S. taxation of foreign
earnings; the elimination or substantial reduction of Teva’s ability to claim foreign tax credits; and limitations on various tax
deductions until foreign earnings are repatriated to the U.S. If any of these proposals were to become law, they could have an adverse
impact on Teva’s overall tax rate, financial position and results of operations.

Net Income and Share Count

Net income attributable to Teva for the quarter ended June 30, 2009 totaled $521 million, compared to net income attributable to
Teva of $533 million in the second quarter of 2008. The decrease in net income is due, in addition to the factors affecting operating
income noted above, to the increases in financial expenses, provision for taxes and losses from associated companies. Net income as a
percentage of sales was 15.3% in the second quarter of 2009, compared to 18.9% in the comparable quarter of 2008. Diluted earnings
per share was $0.58 for the second quarter of 2009, compared to $0.65 for the second quarter of 2008.

For the second quarter of 2009, the share count for the diluted earnings per share calculation was 895 million, as compared to
836 million for the second quarter of 2008, primarily due to the shares issued in connection with the acquisition of Barr.

Comparison of Six Months Ended June 30, 2009 to Six Months Ended June 30, 2008
General

In general, the factors mentioned above that explain quarterly changes on a year-over-year basis are also relevant to a
comparison of the results for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2009. Additional factors affecting the six month
comparisons are described below.
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The following table sets forth certain financial data presented as a percentage of net sales and the percentage change for the
periods indicated.

Percentage of Net Sales

- Period to
Enceadunesn,  perod
2009 2008 Change

% % %
N SAIES ...ttt e bbbt b b e b e bR R bbbt b et 100.0 100.0 21
GIOSS PIOTIL ...ttt b e n s 51.0 53.3 16
Research and developmEeNt EXPENSES ........iiiiiiiiiie et ste e sae e sbe e ste e e e sbeesesaeesbesneens 5.9 7.0 3
Selling and MArketing EXPENSES .......cviueieeiieieesesese e ste e seereeeereeseatestessesteseeseestessesaeseeneesenseasens 19.1 15.8 47
General and adminiStrative EXPENSES .......ccviirririrriiir ittt ene s 6.0 6.1 19
Acquisition of research and development iN PrOCESS ........ccvevvviverieriierieiee e — 7.1 (100)
Litigation settlements, impairment and reStructuring EXPENSES .........covererveerrerereerse e 1.0 — 100
(O] o7 U o T g Teo] 1 PO SRTP 19.0 17.3 33
FINANCIal EXPENSES —NEL .. .eviie ettt ettt ese e e e e e seene s 1.9 1.8 24
INCOME DETOIE INCOME TAXES .. veviieie ettt sttt 17.1 155 34
ProviSion TOr INCOME TAXES. ... ..veiieiiiieiteitie st etesee ettt esta e sre e e s et e e besteestesseesbeaseesbesnaens 1.9 3.0 (23)
Share in losses of associated COMPANIES = NEL........cccviiririerieri e 0.3 — 100
Net income attributable to NON-CONErolliNG INTEIESES.........covveiieiie e * *
Net income attributable t0 TEVA........oiiiiiiie e e 14.9 12.5 45

* Represents a percentage less than 0.05%.

Sales — General

The following tables show the breakdown by geographic area and by business segment of net sales for the six months ended
June 30, 2009 and 2008.

Sales By Geographical Areas

U.S. Dollars in Millions
Six Months Ended

Percent
June 30, Change 2009
2009 2008 from 2008 9% of 2009
Lo LI AY 1 (=T A ToT: TR $ 4,033 $ 3,006 34% 62%
U] o= OSSPSR 1,516 1,537 (1)% 23%
101 (T Y (L0 T U 998 852 17% 15%
B 0] - KT ROTR $ 6,547 $ 5,395 21% 100%
* All members of the European Union as well as Switzerland and Norway.
Sales By Business Segment
U.S._ Dollars in Millions
Six Months Ended Percent
June 30, Change 2009
2009 2008 from 2008 9% of 2009
PharmacCEULICAIS .........ooiviiiiiiie e $ 6,254 $ 5,086 23% 96%
N = O 293 309 (5)% 4%
0] -1 R $ 6547 $ 5,395 21% 100%

* Third-party sales only.
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Pharmaceutical Sales

The following table shows the geographic breakdown of pharmaceutical sales during the six months ended June 30, 2009 and
2008:

Pharmaceutical Sales

U.S. Dollars in Millions
Six Months Ended

Percent
June 30, Change 2009
2009 2008 from 2008 % of 2009
N (o] (AN 1< g T U $ 3913 $ 2,873 36% 62%
BT O™ e bbbt 1,424 1,429 **0 23%
INEEINALIONAL ......viiiiiiii e 917 784 17% 15%
B I ] = TR $ 6,254 $ 5,086 23% 100%

* All members of the European Union as well as Switzerland and Norway.
**  Represents number less than 0.5%.

North America

Pharmaceutical sales in North America for the six months ended June 30, 2009 reached $3,913 million, an increase of 36% over
the comparable period of 2008. Sales growth in this period benefited from the inclusion of Barr’s sales, sales from newly launched
products as described above and increased sales of Copaxone®.

Europe

Teva’s pharmaceutical sales in Europe were $1,424 million in the first six months of 2009, essentially the same as in the first six
months of 2008. Despite an increase in sales, in local currency terms, over the comparable period of 2008, the gain was offset by the
strengthening of the US dollar.

International

Teva’s International group, which includes countries other than the U.S., Canada, EU member states, Norway and Switzerland,
had pharmaceutical sales of $917 million in the first six months of 2009, an increase of 17% over the comparable period of 2008.

Innovative and Specialty Products

Copaxone®. During the first half of 2009, global in-market sales of Copaxone®, Teva’s leading innovative drug, reached a record
of $1,303 million, an increase of 18% over the comparable period of 2008. As of April 1, 2008, Teva assumed sole responsibility for
the distribution of Copaxone® in the U.S. and Canada from sanofi-aventis, and as of that date, it started recording the full in-market
sales of Copaxone® in these regions.

Azilect®. Global in-market sales in the first half reached $110 million compared to $79 million in the comparable period of 2008,
an increase of 39%.

Respiratory. Teva’s global respiratory business recorded sales of $373 million in the first half of 2009, as compared to sales of
$337 million during the comparable period of 2008, an increase of 11%.

Women’s Health. Teva’s women’s health business, which was part of the Barr acquisition, reached sales of $177 million, an
increase of 20% from $147 million as sold by Barr in the comparable period in 2008. This sales figure represents proprietary women’s
health products only and is different from the figure previously reported by Barr as its overall proprietary sales.

Sales of Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (API)
API sales to third parties reached $293 million in the first half of 2009, a decrease of 5% from the comparable period of 2008.

Gross Profit

Gross profit margin was 51.0% in the first six months of 2009, compared to 53.3% for the comparable period of 2008. The
decrease is mainly due to the inventory step-up and amortization of intangible assets related to the Barr acquisition.
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Research and Development (R&D) Expenses
Net R&D spending for the first six months grew by 3% over the comparable period of 2008 and reached $388 million.

In connection with the CoGenesys acquisition in February 2008, Teva wrote off $382 million of in-process R&D in the first six
months of 2008.

Selling and Marketing (S&M) Expenses

S&M expenses, which represented 19.1% of net sales, amounted to $1,253 million in the first six months of 2009, as compared
to 15.8% of net sales and $852 million in the comparable period of 2008.

General and Administrative (G&A) Expenses

G&A expenses were $393 million in the first six months of 2009, essentially unchanged as a percentage of net sales
(6.1%) from the comparable period of 2008.

Financial Expenses

Net financial expenses for the first six months of 2009 were $124 million, compared with $100 million during the first six
months of 2008. Net financial expenses in 2008 included a write-down of $77 million of auction rate securities.

Tax Rate

The provision for taxes for the first six months of 2009 amounted to $123 million, or 11% of pre-tax income of $1,116 million.
The provision for taxes in the comparable period of 2008 was $160 million, or 19% of pre-tax income. The lower tax rate in 2009 is
due to the tax effect of the inventory step-up and other acquisition-related charges recorded during the first half of 2009. The tax rate
for the comparable period of 2008 was affected by a write-off of in-process R&D related to the acquisition of Cogenesys.

Net Income

Net income attributable to Teva for the first six months ended June 30, 2009 totaled $972 million, compared to $672 million in
the comparable period of 2008. Diluted earnings per share reached $1.09 for the first six months of 2009, compared to $0.82 for the
comparable period of 2008. Net income attributable to Teva as a percentage of sales was 14.8% in the first six months of 2009.

Supplemental Non-GAAP Income Data

The tables below present supplemental data, in U.S. dollar terms, as a percentage of sales and the increase/decrease by item as a
percentage of the amount for the comparable period. The data is presented after excluding the following items, a presentation which
we believe facilitates an understanding of the trends underlying our business.

In the three months ended June 30, 2009:

$76 million charge of inventory step-up related to the Barr acquisition;

. $151 million charge related to amortization of purchased intangible assets;
. $42 million of litigation settlement expenses;

. $10 million of restructuring charges in connection with the Barr acquisition;
and a corresponding tax effect of $58 million.

In the six months ended June 30, 2009:

. $296 million charge of inventory step-up related to the Barr acquisition;

. $205 million charge related to amortization of purchased intangible assets;
. $42 million of litigation settlement expenses;

. $21 million of restructuring charges in connection with the Barr acquisition;
. $3 million charge related to impairment of intangible assets;

and a corresponding tax effect of $163 million.

In the three months ended June 30, 2008:
. $45 million charge related to amortization of purchased intangible assets;
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. $25 million charge in connection with an impairment in fair value of auction rate securities;
and a corresponding tax effect of $10 million.

In the six months ended June 30, 2008:

. $382 million charge related to a write-off of in-process R&D in connection with the CoGenesys acquisition;
. $77 million charge in connection with an impairment in fair value of auction rate securities;

. $93 million charge related to amortization of purchased intangible assets;

and a corresponding tax effect of $23 million.

The data so presented—after these exclusions—are the results used by management and our Board of Directors to evaluate our
operational performance, to compare against work plans and budgets, and ultimately to evaluate the performance of management. For
example, each year we prepare detailed “work plans” for the next three succeeding fiscal years. These work plans are used to manage
the business and are the plans against which management’s performance is measured. All of such plans are prepared on a basis
comparable to the presentation below, in that none of the plans takes into account those elements that are factored out in our non-
GAAP presentations. In addition, at quarterly meetings of the Board at which management provides financial updates to the Board,
presentations are made comparing the current fiscal quarterly results against: (a) the comparable quarter of the prior year, (b) the
immediately preceding fiscal quarter and (c) the work plan. Such presentations are based upon the non-GAAP approach reflected in
the table below. Moreover, while there are always qualitative factors and elements of judgment involved in the granting of annual cash
bonuses, the principal quantitative element in the determination of such bonuses are performance targets tied to the work plan, and
thus tied to the same non-GAAP presentation as is set forth below.

In arriving at our non-GAAP presentation, we have in the past factored out items, and would expect in the future to continue to
factor out items, that either have a non-recurring impact on the income statement or which, in the judgment of our management, are
items that, either as a result of their nature or size, we would not expect to occur as part of our normal business on a regular basis, and
that, were they not singled out, could potentially cause investors to extrapolate future performance from an improper base. While not
all-inclusive, examples of these items include: purchase accounting adjustments related to acquisitions, including adjustments for
write-offs of in-process R&D, amortization of intangible assets and inventory “step-ups” following acquisitions; restructuring charges
related to efforts to rationalize and integrate operations on a global basis; material tax and other awards or settlements—both in terms
of amounts paid or amounts received; impairment charges related to intangible and other assets such as intellectual property, product
rights or goodwill; and the income tax effects of the foregoing types of items when they occur.

These data are non-GAAP financial measures and should not be considered replacements for GAAP results. We provide such
non-GAAP data because management believes that such data provide useful information to investors. However, investors are
cautioned that, unlike financial measures prepared in accordance with GAAP, non-GAAP measures may not be comparable with the
calculation of similar measures for other companies. These non-GAAP financial measures are presented solely to permit investors to
more fully understand how management assesses our performance. The limitations of using these non-GAAP financial measures as
performance measures are that they provide a view of our results of operations without including all events during a period, such as
the effects of acquisition, merger-related, restructuring and other charges, and may not provide a comparable view of our performance
to other companies in the pharmaceutical industry.
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Investors should consider non-GAAP financial measures in addition to, and not as replacements for, or superior to,
measures of financial performance prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Supplemental Non-GAAP Income Data

Percentage of

Net Sales Percentage
Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Change
June 30, June 30, Comparison
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009-2008
U.S. dollars and shares in
millions (except percentages
and per share amounts) % % %
NEL SAIES ...ttt e 3,400 2,823 100.0 100.0 20
GrOSS PrOFIt ..c.eeeeie e s 1,988 1,543 58.5 54.7 29
OPErating INCOME.......c..coueieieeeiee e ste e e ne e 981 683 28.9 24.2 44
Income before INCOME tAXES.......ccveiveecriiiee et 920 674 271 23.9 36
Provision for iNCOME taXesS........cccceeviiieiviiirieie e 156 78 4.6 2.8 100
Net income attributable 10 TeVa......c.cccceveivivece e, 742 593 21.8 21.0 25
Diluted earnings per Share.........c.ccvvvveieeie e 0.83 0.72 15
Weighted average number Of Shares .........cccccvcvvievevereierisieeiennns 911 836 9
Percentage of
Net Sales Percentage
Six Months Ended Six Months Ended Change
June 30, June 30, Comparison
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009-2008
U.S. dollars and shares in
millions (except percentages
and per share amounts) % % %
NEE SAIES ...ttt et et 6,547 5,395 100.0 100.0 21
(€] TSl o] (0] 11 AR 3,825 2,956 58.4 54.8 29
OPErating INCOIME .......ocuvieiiereerierieeesieeeeeese e e sre e sie e seeseeeereeseeneas 1,807 1,410 27.6 26.1 28
Income Defore INCOME TAXES.......c.eecviieeeecee et 1,683 1,387 25.7 25.7 21
Provision for iNCOME taXES.........cccvveieeiieieciecec e 286 183 4.4 34 56
Net income attributable t0 TEVA ......c.cccovveeeiiieceecee e 1,376 1,201 21.0 22.3 15
Diluted earnings per Share...........covvieviveie s 1.54 1.47 5
Weighted average number of Shares..........c.cccovvvieverireiieveccecie e 911 836 9

Reconciliation between Reported Net Income Attributable to Teva and Earnings per Share to Non-GAAP Net Income
Attributable to Teva and Earnings per Share

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008

U.S. dollars in millions
(except per share amounts)

Reported net income attributable t0 TEVA ........covviiieiiiie e, 521 533 972 672
Acquisition of research and development iN-ProCeSS.........cevvvveierverieiierieiiee s ee e — — 382
INVENLOrY STEP-UP ChAIGES .o.vvviieieie ettt e 76 — 296 —
Impairment of fiNANCIAL ASSELS .......cvevieiiecie e — 25 77
Litigation settlements, impairment and restructuring EXPeNSES .........cvccvvvrererereeriereaieeeens 52 — 66 —
Amortization of purchased intangible @SSetS...........ccoeiriiriiis s 151 45 205 93
Related taX €FFECE ... .viieicecc e ene (58) (10) (163) (23)
Non-GAAP net income attributable t0 TeVa.......c..cooviiieiiieee e, 742 593 1,376 1,201
Diluted earnings per share:

REPOTEA (B). ettt 0.58 0.65 1.09 0.82

NON-GAAP (B) ettt ettt b ettt bbb r e b ene e, 0.83 0.72 1.54 1.47
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Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of Teva’s consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
U.S. requires management to make estimates and assumptions in certain circumstances that affect the amounts reported in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements and related footnotes. Actual results may differ from these estimates. To facilitate the
understanding of Teva’s business activities, certain accounting policies that are more important to the portrayal of its financial
condition and results of operations and that require management’s subjective judgments are described in Teva’s Annual Report on
Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2008. Teva bases its judgments on its experience and various assumptions that it believes
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The more important estimates that Teva makes on an ongoing basis include those related to
revenue recognition, sales reserves and allowances, income taxes, contingencies, inventories and valuation of intangible assets,
marketable securities and long-lived assets. Please refer to Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in Teva’s Annual
Report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2008 for a summary of all significant accounting policies.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
See the notes to the consolidated financial statements included in this report.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
See the notes to the consolidated financial statements included in this report.

Impact of Currency Fluctuations and Inflation

Because Teva’s results are reported in U.S. dollars, changes in the rate of exchange between the U.S. dollar and local currencies
—mainly the euro, new Israeli shekel (NIS), Canadian dollar, British pound sterling, Russian ruble and Hungarian forint — affect
Teva’s results. During the second quarter of 2009, the euro depreciated by 14% against the U.S. dollar relative to the comparable
quarter last year (average compared with average). In addition, the forint depreciated by approximately 33%, the pound by 27%, the
NIS by 19%, the Canadian dollar by 16% and the ruble by 37% between the second quarter of 2008 and the second quarter of 20009.

Exchange rate movements adversely affected Teva’s sales by approximately 9% ($256 million) during the second quarter of
2009 as compared to the second quarter of 2008, with a negligible effect on operating income, due to an offsetting decrease in the U.S.
dollar cost of expenses incurred in local currencies.

The inflation rate in Venezuela, which has increased substantially over the past few years, is approaching hyperinflation (100%
over a three year period). The exchange rate between the U.S. dollar and the Venezuela bolivar has been fixed by the Venezuelan
authorities over the last few years. The Venezuelan authorities also imposed monetary restrictions on the distribution of foreign
currencies from Venezuela. A potential devaluation of the local currency versus the U.S. dollar may have an adverse effect on Teva’s
financial position and the results of our Venezuelan operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Total assets amounted to $32.3 billion at June 30, 2009 compared to $32.2 billion at March 31, 2009. The strengthening of most
currencies versus the U.S. dollar during the second quarter of 2009 resulted in an increase in many of the balance sheet items, which
was offset by a decrease in cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments, which were used to reduce debt.

Inventory value increased during the quarter by $285 million, mainly due to currency effects and an increase in inventory
undertaken to improve Teva’s ability to meet customer requirements, partially offset by the inventory step-up charge recorded in the
second quarter. The ratio of days sales in inventory at June 30, 2009 decreased to 188 compared to 191 at March 31, 20009.

Trade receivables, net of sales reserves and allowances (“SR&A”), increased by $344 million during the quarter primarily due to
the strengthening of most currencies versus the U.S. dollar. Days sales outstanding (receivables), net of SR&A, decreased from 51
days in March 31, 2009, to 47 days at June 30, 2009. Although Teva records receivables on a gross basis, and records substantially all
of the SR&A as a liability, Teva has used a net figure for the calculation in order to facilitate a more meaningful comparison with
some of its peers, which record receivables net of these reserves.

Investment in property, plant and equipment in the second quarter of 2009 was $151 million, compared to $180 million in the
comparable quarter last year and $681 million for all of 2008. On an annual basis, investments in property, plant and equipment are
expected to be lower than in 2008, due to the additional assets obtained as a result of the Barr acquisition. Depreciation amounted to
$107 million in the second quarter of 2009, as compared to $76 million in the comparable quarter of 2008. The increase reflects the
higher cost basis being depreciated, with the inclusion of Barr’s assets.
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Total debt decreased by $1.7 billion during the second quarter of 2009. Debt repayment of approximately $1 billion included
repayment of $770 million of the bridge loan facilities used for funding the acquisition of Barr, which, as of June 30, 2009, had a
remaining balance of $630 million. Debt was also decreased due to the conversion of $719 million of Teva’s convertible senior
debentures due 2024, which reduced short-term and long-term debt in roughly equal amounts. As a result, Teva’s financial leverage
ratio decreased from approximately 34% at March 31, 2009 to approximately 27% at June 30, 2009.

Shareholders’ equity was $17.8 hillion at June 30, 2009. The increase of $1,736 million from March 31, 2009 resulted primarily
from the conversion of approximately $719 million of convertible debt, a $527 million translation gain as a result of the strengthening
of most of the major currencies relative to the U.S. dollar and net income from the quarter of $521 million, offset by dividend
payments.

For purposes of calculating Teva’s market capitalization at June 30, 2009, Teva uses approximately 879 million shares. Such
number represents ordinary shares outstanding on such date, less shares held by subsidiaries, plus exchangeable shares issuable in
connection with the acquisition of Novopharm Ltd.

Cash flow generated from operating activities during the second quarter of 2009 was $658 million compared to $806 million in
the second quarter of 2008. The lower cash flow from operations was driven by the timing of significant U.S. launches and related
collections. In addition, Teva paid during the quarter approximately $80 million of Barr integration-related expenses that are not
reflected in the income statement according to purchase accounting.

Teva’s principal sources of short-term liquidity are its existing cash investments and liquid securities, as well as internally
generated funds, which Teva believes are sufficient to meet its operating needs and anticipated capital expenditures over the near term.

RISK FACTORS

There are no material changes to the risk factors previously disclosed in Teva’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended
December 31, 2008.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Reference is made to “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” (Item 11) in Teva’s Annual Report on
Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2008.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Teva is subject to various litigation and other legal proceedings. For a discussion of these matters, see “Contingencies,” Note 12
to the consolidated financial statements included in this report.

SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(Registrant)

Date: July 29, 2009 By: /s/ Eyal Desheh

Name: Eyal Desheh
Title: Chief Financial Officer
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